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	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	RFP# 202409176 – Clean Energy Research, Demonstration, and Financing Analysis and Advisory Study

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Governor’s Energy Office

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	October 4, 2024

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	October 10, 2024

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	October 18, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m. local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov 



Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Does the GEO have any restrictions or preferences for project staff located outside of Maine or the US? 

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder is restricted from storing project data outside of the US. Bidder’s employees may access data outside the US but may not store data locally outside of the US. Concerning data use restrictions, Bidders should refer to State of Maine Department of Administrative & Financial Services Office of Information Technology System and Services Acquisition Policy and Procedures (SA-1), and Maine State Government Department of Administrative and Financial Services Office of Information Technology (OIT) Data Classification Policy.
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part 1.B 
(Page 6)
	The General Provisions states: “The Department also reserves the right to consider other reliable references and publicly available information in evaluating a Bidder’s experience and capabilities.” Are Bidders permitted to submit references or letters of support to GEO for consideration?

	
	Answer

	
	Appendix C, Qualifications and Experience Form asks Bidders to provide a description of projects that occurred within the past five years which reflect experience and expertise needed in performing the functions described in Part II – Scope of Services to be Provided of the RFP. Bidders are asked to provide client contact information for each project. Where possible, Bidders should include links to or provide attachments of Final Reports and Deliverables from past projects. Please also note that contract history with the State of Maine, whether positive or negative, may be considered in rating proposals even if not provided by the Bidder.
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part 2.C 
(Pages 8 – 10)
	For the public input opportunities, interviews, and presentations described in the RFP, can the GEO please provide guidance on its requirements or preferences for out-of-state staff to travel to Maine or join meetings virtually through Zoom or MS Teams?

	
	Answer

	
	It is the GEO’s expectation that most of this work will be done virtually. If feasible, 1-3 in-person presentations or stakeholder engagement sessions may be required in coordination with the GEO. 
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part 2.C 
(Page 10)
	Is Task 4 expected only after the GEO opts to enter into the additional renewal period (Renewal Period #1)?

	
	Answer

	
	Following the initial period of performance, the GEO may opt to enter into an additional renewal period (Renewal Period #1) for Task 4. The decision to enter into the renewal period is subject to continued availability of funding and satisfactory performance. 
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part 2.C 
(Pages 10 – 11)
	Task 4 (Technical Assistance for Research, Demonstration, and Financing Strategy Implementation) is scheduled from 06/01/2025 – 05/31/2026. However, Deliverable 4 (Technical Assistance for Strategy Implementation – Summary memo) is due 09/30/2025. Is Deliverable 4 connected to Task 4? If so, what specific activities are expected from the awarded Bidder between 9/30/2025 – 5/31/2026, after the Deliverable 4 has already been submitted?

	
	Answer

	
	Deliverable 4 is connected to Task 4. Task 4 will entail:
1. Development of core guidance and incentive package offerings tailored to target investments identified by the report(s).
2. Development of economic development project candidates.
3. Technical assistance to respond to inquiries.

Between 6/1/2025 and 5/31/2026, the Bidder will perform the activities above. Deliverable 4 (due 9/30/2025) will summarize the core guidance and incentive package offerings tailored to target investments identified by the other deliverables/report(s). 
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	The timing & deadline for Task 4 does not appear to match. Can you please clarify? 

	
	Answer

	
	Following the initial period of performance, the GEO may opt to enter into an additional renewal period (Renewal Period #1) for Task 4. Between 6/1/2025 and 5/31/2026, the Bidder will perform the Task 4 activities. Deliverable 4, due 9/30/2025, will summarize the core guidance and incentive package offerings tailored to target investments identified by the other deliverables/report(s). 
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Is there possibility of additional budget allocation in the period 10/1/2025 – 05/31/3026 as the Task 4 is to be completed by 09/30/2025?

	
	Answer

	
	Task 4 will be completed by 5/31/2026, with Deliverable 4 due on 09/30/2025. Proposals should include a budget of at least $50,000 for Task 4. 
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section I.A 
Page 5
	Page 5 requests (under purpose and background) an “Analysis of costs and benefits of those options for Maine taxpayers, ratepayers, and businesses.” What metrics does GEO envision coming out of this specific options analysis? For example, is GEO seeking an LCOE analysis (for one or more representative projects) that quantifies the potential impact of different financing mechanisms and incentives?

	
	Answer

	
	The study seeks to inform policy and programmatic recommendations to achieve Maine’s clean energy economic development goals while protecting taxpayers and ratepayers.
The Bidder will coordinate with GEO to define specific research priorities and methods as needed. If there are additional project refinements that are recommended to be considered for incorporation into the project, please make note of those in the proposal.
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II.B 
Page 8
	On p. 8, the RFP states that one of the “three broad objectives of the requested research” involved “defin[ing] the in-State capital stack for clean energy businesses and projects seeking investment above a certain threshold. Can GEO please explain in detail what it means by “above a certain threshold”? Does this refer to transaction size ($), target return, or something else?

	
	Answer

	
	The study supports GEO’s objective to define the in-State capital stack for clean energy businesses and projects seeking investment above a certain threshold related to project financing. The Bidder will coordinate with GEO to define specific priorities. If there are additional project refinements that are recommended to be considered for incorporation into the project, please make note of those in the proposal.
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II.C 
Page 9
	On p. 9, the RFP states that the selected bidder will “Perform quantitative benchmarking of Maine's resources available” For avoidance of doubt, can GEO confirm this refers specifically to state (rather than private sector) resources (and specifically, state financial resources), or something else?

	
	Answer

	
	The quantitative benchmarking of Maine's resources available should be informed by informational interviews with the GEO, DECD, MTI, FAME, MVF, EMT, MITC and other state agencies, in-state funds, and financial institutions, among other research activities. If there are additional project refinements that are recommended to be considered for incorporation into the project, please make note of those in the proposal.
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II.C 
Page 9
	On p. 9, the RFP states that the selected bidder will “In coordination with GEO, conduct initial interviews with key stakeholders…”. Should the selected bidder assume, for pricing purposes, that appropriate introductions will be made by GEO, so that the bidder might right-size their levels of effort in scheduling and conducting interviews? Or will bidders be responsible for identifying and contacting all interview candidates?

	
	Answer

	
	Stakeholder engagement will be performed in coordination with GEO. The GEO will support the Bidder in identifying key stakeholders.
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Tasks 1, 2, and 3 appear to each include one public meeting. Please confirm. And please indicate whether these meetings will be held in person or virtually?

	
	Answer

	
	It is the GEO’s expectation that most of this work will be done virtually. If feasible, 1-3 in-person presentations or stakeholder engagement sessions may be required in coordination with the GEO. Public meetings may be delivered in hybrid or virtual format using web-based meeting and webinar platforms. 
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	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	We respectfully ask for an extension to Friday, October 25, 2024, 12PM so that we may prepare a response that meets the RFP requirements for your consideration.

	
	Answer

	
	At this point, we do not anticipate extending the proposal deadline. We will publicly post a notice should that change.  
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